
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

CORPORATE COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 17th March, 2021, 7.00 pm - MS Teams Watch it: Here 
 
Members: Councillors Isidoros Diakides (Chair), Zena Brabazon (Vice-Chair), 
Dawn Barnes, Patrick Berryman, Dana Carlin, Vincent Carroll, Mahir Demir, 
Erdal Dogan, Scott Emery, Liz Morris, Alessandra Rossetti and Anne Stennett 
 
Quorum: 3 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS   

 
Please note that this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for 
live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone 
attending the meeting using any communication method. Although we ask 
members of the public recording, filming or reporting on the meeting not to 
include the public seating areas, members of the public attending the meeting 
should be aware that we cannot guarantee that they will not be filmed or 
recorded by others attending the meeting. Members of the public participating 
in the meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, making oral 
protests) should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, recorded or 
reported on.   

 
By entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings. 
 
The chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or 
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or 
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any 
individual or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS (IF ANY)   
 

3. URGENT BUSINESS   
 
The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. 
(late items will be considered under the agenda items where they appear.  
New items will be dealt with at item 12) 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a 
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is 
considered: 
 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MGFiM2VmZjctOGU0Yi00YjUzLThkMDktM2EzNDJjMGY4YTJi%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%226ddfa760-8cd5-44a8-8e48-d8ca487731c3%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22f5230856-79e8-4651-a903-97aa289e8eff%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d&btype=a&role=a


 

(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
withdraw from the meeting room. 
 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which 
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a 
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days of the disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests 
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct. 
 

5. DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / QUESTIONS   
 
To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, section B, 
Paragraph 29 of the Council’s Constitution. 
 

6. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 8) 
 
To consider and agree the minutes of the meeting held on 4th February.  
 

7. RENAMING OF BLACK BOY LANE TO LA ROSE LANE  (PAGES 9 - 88) 
 

8. STATEMENT OF FINAL ACCOUNTS & AUDIT COMPLETION REPORT   
 
To follow.  
 

9. QUARTER 4 TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE  (PAGES 89 - 102) 
 

10. ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN, STRATEGY AND CHARTER 2021/22  
(PAGES 103 - 124) 
 

11. AUDIT & RISK SERVICE UPDATE  (PAGES 125 - 136) 
 

12. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS   
 
To consider any items of urgent business as identified at item 3 
 

13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE   
 
To consider any items admitted at item 2 above. 
 

14. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
Item 15 is likely to be subject to a motion to exclude the press and public be 
from the meeting as it contains exempt information as defined in Section 100a 
of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended by Section 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1985); paragraph 3. 



 

 
15. AUDIT OF CYBER SECURITY UPDATE   

 
Verbal update.  
 

16. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING   
 
TBC 
 
 

Philip Slawther, Principal Committee Co-ordinator 
Tel – 020 8489 2957 
Fax – 020 8881 5218 
Email: philip.slawther2@haringey.gov.uk 
 
John Jones 
Monitoring Officer (Interim) 
River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ 
 
Tuesday, 09 March 2021 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

MINUTES OF MEETING Corporate Committee HELD ON 
Thursday, 4th February, 2021, 7.00  - 8.40 pm 
 

 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillors: Isidoros Diakides (Chair), Zena Brabazon (Vice-Chair), 
Dawn Barnes, Patrick Berryman, Dana Carlin, Vincent Carroll, 
Mahir Demir, Erdal Dogan, Scott Emery, Liz Morris, Alessandra Rossetti 
and Anne Stennett 
 
 
ALSO ATTENDING: Cllr Cawley-Harrison, Cllr Palmer & Cllr Hinchcliffe. 
 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS  

 
The Chair referred Members present to agenda Item 1 as shown on the agenda in 
respect of filming at this meeting, and Members noted the information contained 
therein. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS (IF ANY)  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

3. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There was no urgent business 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 

5. DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / QUESTIONS  
 
None. 
 

6. MINUTES  
 
The Committee requested an update on the Leader providing copies of his 
correspondence with the La Rose Family. (Action Clerk). 
 
Clerk’s update: The letters will be provided as part of the final decision making report 
due to be considered in March. The minutes of the previous meeting on 3rd December, 
under item 171 paragraph j, set out that “The Leader agreed that he would provide the 
Committee with copies of these letters as part of the final decision stage of the 
process”.   
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 6



 

RESOLVED  
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 3rd December 2020 were agreed as a correct 
record. 
 

7. 2021/22 - TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT; ANNUAL 
INVESTMENT STRATEGY; AND MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION POLICY 
STATEMENT  
 
The Committee received the draft Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) 

for 2021/22 and was invited to provide comments on it. The TMSS had already been 

considered by Overview & Scrutiny Committee and was subsequently due to be 

approved by Full Council. The report was introduced by Oladapo Shonola, Head of 

Pensions & Treasury as set out in the agenda pack at pages 13-38. The following 

arose from the discussion of the report: 

a. The Committee sought clarification around the nature of other sources of debt 

finance, as set out in section 4.8 of the TMSS. In response, officers advised 

that this section of the report set out other areas of debt liabilities that can arise 

aside from Council activities, but that as with all capital expenditure approval 

will be required before expenditure is incurred or this type of borrowing is 

undertaken. Examples of this included leases and items bought on hire 

purchase, such as if the Council were to lease a number of new photocopiers, 

this would then be reflected in the accounts as a debt liability.   

b. In relation to the external context section of the report, the Committee queried 

why there was no mention of Brexit. In response, officers advised that this was 

a section of the report in which the Council’s treasury advisors, Arlingclose, 

provided headlines of the key external impacts to the Council. Brexit had 

already happened and was mentioned later in the report. In relation to a follow-

up, officers advised that the need to borrow more because of Brexit was not 

something that would affect local authorities particularly but may impact central 

government.   

c. In relation to the impact of possible negative interest rates, officers advised that 

the Council did not have much in the way of surplus cash that it would need to 

generate interest on and so impact on the Council of negative interest rate 

would be minimal on investment returns. The Council short term borrowing 

rates would fall in this environment which would likely have an immediate 

impact on borrowing cost that should offset losses on investment returns. The 

Committee was advised that negative interest rates may, in fact, have a 

positive impact on the Council’s long term borrowing  to fund its capital 

programme.  

d. In response to a question around whether there was any scope for the Council 

to renegotiate deals with large scale building contractors and other such 

partners in the event of decreasing interest rates, officers advise that this was 

something that would be monitored going forwards but that renegotiating 

contracts would be difficult. 

e. In relation to concerns raised around PFI contracts and the likelihood of 

entering into new ones, officers advised that PFI contracts held by the Council 

Page 2



 

were all historical, with the most recent being from the late 2000s. These 

contracts were negotiated when there was significant government funding 

available to support them, which was no longer available. Officers assured the 

Committee that there were no plans of entering into any new PFI contracts and 

that if this did happen it would need to go through a process of political decision 

making and oversight such as Cabinet and Overview & Scrutiny.   

f. In response to a request from the Committee, officers agreed to amend the 

report to make it expressly clear that there was no intention of taking out any 

new PFI contracts and that any such arrangement would require Cabinet 

approval. (Action: Dapo). 

g. In relation to a question around Paragraph 4.3 and the Council’s borrowing 

strategy, officers advised that this paragraph set out how the Council structured 

its debt to use as much internal borrowing or short term loans (due to 

favourable interest rates) as possible, whilst also needing to diversify the 

Council’s debt portfolio to further minimise refinancing risk.  

h. The Committee sought assurances around where the financial risk of each 

project in the Capital programme was assessed and monitored. Officers 

advised that every capital bid had an assessment of financial assumptions 

undertaken as part of the process of developing an outline business case. The 

Committee commented that more robust processes of monitoring the ongoing 

financial risks needed to be developed, the impact of either appreciating or 

depreciating land values could have on the capital programme was given by 

way of an example. Officers acknowledged the need to monitor financial 

assumptions and set out that this was one of the elements that would be picked 

up by the external auditors as part of the final accounts verification process.  

i. In relation to concerns around an over-reliance on investing money with the 

government, the Committee were advised that this was the safest form of 

borrowing with the lowest risk, as the government were a sovereign monetary 

institution and its was extremely unlikely that they would ever go bust. Officers 

also set out that any secured investment would entail the authority holding 

collateral.  

j. In response to a question, officers advised that the report set out that the 

average rate of return on investments was around 0.75%.  

k. The Committee sought assurances around what would happen if Haringey lent 

money to another local authority that subsequently became insolvent. In 

response, officers set out that as far as they were aware no local authority that 

that had ever been in trouble had defaulted on its debts and that they would 

have access to government loans. Ultimately, it was envisaged that if that was 

to ever happen then the government would step in. 

l. In relation to the mechanism for securing lending/borrowing to another local 

authority, officers advised that some deals were conducted through a third-

party broker, but that it was also possible to agree this bilaterally.  

m. In the instance that loans to a third party or commercial investments could not 

be paid back, then this debt would be written off and there was a clear process 

in place for doing this.  

Page 3



 

n. In relation to the Community Benefits Society, officers advised that this did not 

fall into the category of commercial investment as it was residential rather than 

commercial and it was also an Arm’s Length Management Organisation rather 

than a subsidiary. The Council leased properties to the Community Benefits 

Society, but it did not lend it money as such.  

 

RESOLVED 
 
That the updated Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2021/22 was agreed 
and recommended to Full Council for approval.  
 

8. AUDIT & RISK SERVICE UPDATE QUARTER 3  
 
The Committee received a report which set out the work undertaken by the in-house 
Audit and Fraud teams, as well as Mazars, for the quarter ending 31 December 2020. 
The report was introduced by Minesh Jani, Head of Audit and Risk Management as 
set out in the agenda pack at pages 39-51.  
 
*Clerk’s note: 20:13 - The Chair had to leave the meeting temporarily. The Vice-Chair 
chaired the meeting in his absence.  20:18 - The Chair returned to the meeting and 
resumed chairing.* 
 
The following was raised in discussion of the report: 

a. The Committee noted concerns around the limited assurance assigned to the 
management of cyber risks audit and raised concerns about the importance of 
cyber security, emphasising the potential consequences to the authority if its 
cyber security provisions were not robust. In response, officers acknowledged 
the importance of cyber risk and advised that the reason that there was no date 
for the completion of the management actions raised in response to the audit 
findings was that a composite action plan was being developed by the service. 
Officers assured the Committee that this action plan would be monitored by the 
relevant director and that the audit service would be conducting a follow-up 
audit in 2021-22.  

b. In response to a question around patching and whether the Council used a 
physical server, rather than a cloud-based server, officers advised that the 
issue in question was server based. Officers clarified that the auditors had 
conducted testing on all of the IT infrastructure and had identified some areas 
where the patching needed to be updated/improved. The Chair requested that 
a report be brought back to the next meeting which provided an update on IT 
security and the management action taken to date to rectify the issues raised. 
(Action: Minesh). 

c. The Committee were advised that during Q3, 6 properties were recovered in 
relation to tenancy fraud, which brought the YTD total up to 16. It was noted 
that this was significantly behind the annual target and that this was due to 
Covid impacting the service’s ability to undertake site visits.  

d. In relation to Right-to-Buy fraud, the service had prevented 15 properties 
proceeding to sale in Q3 and 53 for the year. Officers advised that the service 
was unlikely to reach its target of 80 for the year. 

Page 4



 

e. The Committee was advised that the Council had successfully won a court 
case earlier in the day around a tenant who was found to be illegally subletting 
their property and it was estimated that they had made around £19k from doing 
so. The Court awarded £21k in fines plus costs and the Head of Audit and Risk 
Management assured the Committee that the service would continue to 
prosecute similar cases where there was evidence of fraud. The Chair 
requested that members of the Committee be provided with a briefing on this 
court case and that it was also promoted through the Council’s communications 
channels. (Action: Minesh). 

f. In the YTD to December there had been 43 referrals under NRPF.  
g. In relation to the National Fraud Initiative, officers advised that they had 

received a number of ‘matches’ and were working through these. A table would 
be included in the next report which provided an update on work done around 
the National Fraud Initiative. (Action: Minesh). 

h. In relation to a question around when audit reports issued in this quarter would 
be coming to the Committee, officers advised that these reports were due to be 
finished in this quarter. A summary of the outcomes of the audit report would be 
included in the next quarterly update coming to the Committee and the 
recommendations raised in those reports would also be issued once 
completed.  

i. The Chair requested that once completed, all audit reports would be sent to the 
relevant Cabinet Member, Chairs of relevant committees and the Chair of OSC. 
The Head of Audit and Risk Management agreed to take this forward. (Action: 
Minesh). 

 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Corporate Committee noted the activities of the team during quarter three 
2020/21. 
 

9. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
N/A 
 

10. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING  
 
TBC. 
 

11. A.O.B.  
 
None. 
 
 

CHAIR: Councillor Isidoros Diakides 
 
Signed by Chair ……………………………….. 
 
Date ……………………………… 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Committee 
Action Tracker 
 

Mtg. 
Date 

 
Action 

 
Response  

 
Who by 

 
Completed 

4th 
February 
2021 

An update on providing copies of his correspondence 
with the La Rose Family 

These will be included in the report to 
the Committee on 17th.  

Clerk Completed. 

4th 
February 
2021 

Officers agreed to amend the TMSS report to make it 
expressly clear that there was no intention of taking 
out any new PFI contracts and that any such 
arrangement would require Cabinet approval. 

The report to Full Council was 
amended to reflect the change 
requested.  

Dapo Completed. 

4th 
February 
2021 

The Chair requested that an update be brought back 
to the next meeting which provided an update on IT 
security and the management action taken to date to 
rectify the issues raised. 

A verbal update will be provided to 
Committee on 17th March  

Minesh Jani/Paul 
Dooley 

Completed. 

4th 
February 
2021 

The Chair requested that members of the Committee 
be provided with a briefing on the recent tenancy 
fraud court case and that it also be promoted through 
the Council’s communications channels. 

This will be provided following 
recovery of the housing unit. 

Minesh Jani Ongoing 

4th 
February 
2021 

A table to be included in the next report which 
provided an update on work done around the National 
Fraud Initiative. 

This will be included in the audit 
update to the next meeting. 

Minesh Jani Completed. 

4th 
February 
2021 

The Chair requested that once completed, all audit 
reports would be sent to the relevant Cabinet 
Member, Chairs of relevant committees and the Chair 
of OSC. The Head of Audit and Risk Management 
agreed to take this forward. 

Agreed Minesh Jani Ongoing. 

3rd 
December 
2020 

The Committee sought clarification around the 
corporate Risk Register, and further information about 
how this fed into the wider Risk Management 
Strategy. The Head of Audit and Risk Management 
agreed to circulate a response in writing to the 
Committee due to the fact that meeting was 
overrunning. 
 

The Head of Audit and Risk 
Management circulated response 
following the December meeting. 

Minesh Jani Completed. 

 

P
age 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 79  

 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

 

Page 9 Agenda Item 7

mailto:jonathan.unger@haringey.gov.uk
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=730&MId=9419&Ver=4
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=66842


 

Page 2 of 79  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 10



 

Page 3 of 79  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11

https://lbharingey.sharepoint.com/sites/PPTI/Shared%20Documents/Land,%20Property%20and%20Streets/SNN/Review%20on%20Monuments,%20Building,%20Place%20and%20Street%20Names/The%20Commission%20for%20Diversity%20in%20the%20Public%20Realm%20will%20focus%20on%20increasing%20representation%20among%20Black,%20Asian%20and%20Minority%20Ethnic%20communities,%20women,%20the%20LGBTQ+%20community%20and%20disability%20groups.%20London%20is%20one%20of%20the%20most%20diverse%20cities%20in%20the%20world,%20with%20more%20than%20300%20languages%20spoken%20every%20day,%20yet%20statues,%20plaques%20and%20street%20names%20largely%20reflect%20Victorian%20Britain%20–%20as%20highlighted%20by%20recent%20Black%20Lives%20Matter%20protests.
https://lbharingey.sharepoint.com/sites/PPTI/Shared%20Documents/Land,%20Property%20and%20Streets/SNN/Review%20on%20Monuments,%20Building,%20Place%20and%20Street%20Names/The%20Commission%20for%20Diversity%20in%20the%20Public%20Realm%20will%20focus%20on%20increasing%20representation%20among%20Black,%20Asian%20and%20Minority%20Ethnic%20communities,%20women,%20the%20LGBTQ+%20community%20and%20disability%20groups.%20London%20is%20one%20of%20the%20most%20diverse%20cities%20in%20the%20world,%20with%20more%20than%20300%20languages%20spoken%20every%20day,%20yet%20statues,%20plaques%20and%20street%20names%20largely%20reflect%20Victorian%20Britain%20–%20as%20highlighted%20by%20recent%20Black%20Lives%20Matter%20protests.
https://www.haringey.gov.uk/news/leader-statement-review-monuments-building-place-and-street-names-haringey
https://www.haringey.gov.uk/news/leader-statement-review-monuments-building-place-and-street-names-haringey


 

Page 4 of 79  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12



 

Page 5 of 79  

 

 

• 

• 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 
o 

o 
o 
o 

• 
o 
o 

o 

• 

 

Page 13

https://www.haringey.gov.uk/parking-roads-and-travel/roads-and-streets/street-and-building-naming-and-numbering
https://www.haringey.gov.uk/parking-roads-and-travel/roads-and-streets/street-and-building-naming-and-numbering
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/renaming-black-boy-lane
mailto:bblconsultation@haringey.gov.uk


 

Page 6 of 79  

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
o 

o 
o 
o 

• 
o 
o 
o 

o 

• 

 

Page 14

http://www.haringey.gov.uk/renaming-black-boy-lane
mailto:bblconsultation@haringey.gov.uk


 

Page 7 of 79  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



 

Page 8 of 79  

Page 16

http://www.gov.uk/


 

Page 9 of 79  

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 17



 

Page 10 of 79  

 

 

 

 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 18



 

Page 11 of 79  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• 

• 

Page 19



 

Page 12 of 79  

• 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



 

Page 13 of 79  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



 

Page 14 of 79  

 

 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

 

Page 22



 

Page 15 of 79  

 

 

 

 

Page 23



 

Page 16 of 79  

 

 

 

 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 24



 

Page 17 of 79  

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 25



 

Page 18 of 79  

 

 
 

 

Page 26



 

Page 19 of 79  

 

Page 27



 

Page 20 of 79  

 

Page 28



 

Page 21 of 79  

 

Page 29



 

Page 22 of 79  

 

Page 30



 

Page 23 of 79  

 

Page 31



 

Page 24 of 79  

 

Page 32



 

Page 25 of 79  

 

Page 33



 

Page 26 of 79  

 

Page 34



 

Page 27 of 79  

 

Page 35



 

Page 28 of 79  

 

Page 36

http://www.georgepadmoreinstitute.org/collection/john-la-rose-collection


 

Page 29 of 79  

 

Page 37



 

Page 30 of 79  

Page 38



 

Page 31 of 79  

P
age 39



 

Page 32 of 79  

P
age 40



 

Page 33 of 79  

P
age 41



 

Page 34 of 79  

P
age 42



 

Page 35 of 79  

P
age 43



 

Page 36 of 79  

P
age 44



 

Page 37 of 79  

P
age 45



 

Page 38 of 79  

P
age 46



 

Page 39 of 79  

P
age 47



 

Page 40 of 79  

P
age 48



 

Page 41 of 79  

    P
age 49



 

Page 42 of 79  

P
age 50



 

Page 43 of 79  

P
age 51



 

Page 44 of 79  

P
age 52



 

Page 45 of 79  

P
age 53



 

Page 46 of 79  

P
age 54



 

Page 47 of 79  

P
age 55



 

Page 48 of 79  

P
age 56



 

Page 49 of 79  

P
age 57



 

Page 50 of 79  

P
age 58



 

Page 51 of 79  

P
age 59



 

Page 52 of 79  

P
age 60



 

Page 53 of 79  

P
age 61



 

Page 54 of 79  

P
age 62



 

Page 55 of 79  

P
age 63



 

Page 56 of 79  

P
age 64



 

Page 57 of 79  

P
age 65



 

Page 58 of 79  

P
age 66



 

Page 59 of 79  

P
age 67



 

Page 60 of 79  

P
age 68



 

Page 61 of 79  

P
age 69

https://getoutside.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/guides/the-history-of-pub-names/


 

Page 62 of 79  

P
age 70



 

Page 63 of 79  

P
age 71



 

Page 64 of 79  

P
age 72



 

Page 65 of 79  

P
age 73



 

Page 66 of 79  

P
age 74



 

Page 67 of 79  

P
age 75



 

Page 68 of 79  

P
age 76



 

Page 69 of 79  

- 

- 

- 

Page 77



 

Page 70 of 79  

• 

• 

• 

Page 78



 

Page 71 of 79  

Page 79



 

Page 72 of 79  

• 

• 

Page 80



 

Page 73 of 79  

• 

• 

o 

o 

o 

o 

• 

o 

o 

o 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
o 

o 
o 
o 

• 
o 
o 
o 

o 

• 

Page 81

http://www.haringey.gov.uk/renaming-black-boy-lane
mailto:bblconsultation@haringey.gov.uk
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/renaming-black-boy-lane
mailto:bblconsultation@haringey.gov.uk


 

Page 74 of 79  

Page 82



 

Page 75 of 79  

Page 83



 

Page 76 of 79  

Page 84



 

Page 77 of 79  

• 

• 

 

 

 

• 

Page 85



 

Page 78 of 79  

Page 86



 

Page 79 of 79  

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 3 

Report for:  Corporate Committee 17 March 2021 
 
Title: Treasury Management Update Report 
 
Report  
authorised by:  Thomas Skeen, Assistant Director of Finance (Deputy S151 

Officer) 
 
Lead Officer: Tim Mpofu, Head of Pensions & Treasury  
 tim.mpofu@haringey.gov.uk  
 
Ward(s) affected:  N/A  
 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: Non Key decision  
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1. This report updates the Committee on the Council’s treasury 

management activities and performance in the three months to 31 
December 2020 in accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code of Practice. 

 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 

 
2.1. Not applicable.  
 

3. Recommendations 
 
The Corporate Committee is requested: 
 
3.1. To note the Treasury Management activity undertaken during the three 

months to 31st December 2020; and the performance achieved which is 
attached as Appendix 1 to this report. 

 
3.2. To note that all treasury activities were undertaken in line with the 

approved Treasury Management Strategy. 
 

4. Reason for Decision 
 
4.1. None. 

 
5. Other options considered 

 
5.1. None. 

6. Background information  
 

Page 89 Agenda Item 9

mailto:tim.mpofu@haringey.gov.uk


 

Page 2 of 3 

6.1. The Council’s treasury management activity is underpinned by     
CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management (“the Code”), which 
requires local authorities to produce annually Prudential Indicators and 
a Treasury Management Strategy Statement. CIPFA has defined 
Treasury management as: “The management of the local authority’s 
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital 
market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with 
those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with 
those risks.”  
 

6.2. The Code recommends that members are informed of treasury 
management activities at least twice a year.  Formulation of treasury 
policy, strategy and activity is delegated to the Corporate Committee and 
this Committee receives reports quarterly. 

 
6.3. However, overall responsibility for treasury management remains with 

full Council and the Council approved the Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement and set the Prudential Indicators for 2020/21 on 24 
February 2020. The Corporate Committee is responsible for monitoring 
treasury management activity and this is achieved through the receipt of 
quarterly/annual reports.  This report forms the third quarterly monitoring 
report for 2020/21. 

 
6.4. Government guidance on local authority treasury management states 

that local authorities should consider the following factors in the order 
they are stated: 

 
Security - Liquidity - Yield 

 
6.5. The Treasury Management Strategy reflects these factors and is explicit 

that the priority for the Council is the security of its funds. However, no 
treasury activity is without risk and the effective identification and 
management of risk are integral to the Council’s treasury management 
activities. 
 

7. Contribution to Strategic Outcomes 
 
7.1. None. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including 
procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities) 
 
Finance and Procurement 

Page 90



 

Page 3 of 3 

 
8.1. Finance comments are contained within the body of the report.   

 
Legal  

 
8.2. The contents and recommendation of this report are in accordance the 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and consistent with 
legislation governing the financial affairs of the Council.  In considering 
the report Members must take into account the expert financial advice 
available to it and any further oral advice given at the meeting of the 
Committee. 

 
Equalities  

 
8.3. There are no equalities issues arising from this report. 

 
9.  Use of Appendices 

 

Appendix 1 – Q3 2020/21 Treasury Management Update Report 

 

10.  Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 

10.1.  Not applicable. 
 
 

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Appendix 1 - Treasury Management Outturn Report Q3 2020/21 

 

1. Introduction   
 

1.1. The Authority has adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s 
Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice (the CIPFA Code) which 
requires the Authority to approve treasury management semi-annual and annual reports. 
This quarterly report provides an additional update. 
 

1.2. The Authority’s treasury management strategy for 2020/21 was approved at a meeting of 
full Council 24 February 2020. The Authority has borrowed and invested substantial sums 
of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested funds 
and the revenue effect of changing interest rates.  The successful identification, monitoring 
and control of risk remains central to the Authority’s treasury management strategy. 

 
1.3. The 2017 Prudential Code includes a requirement for local authorities to provide a Capital 

Strategy, a summary document approved by full Council covering capital expenditure and 
financing, treasury management and non-treasury investments.  The Authority’s Capital 
Strategy, complying with CIPFA’s requirement, was approved by full Council on 24 
February 2020. 

 
2. External Context (provided by the Council’s treasury management advisor, 

Arlingclose) 
 

Economic background 
 

2.1. Some good news came during the quarter ending 31st December as two COVID-19 
vaccines were given approval by the UK Medicines and Healthcare products Regulatory 
Agency (MHRA). The UK Medicines and Healthcare products Regulatory Agency (MHRA) 
provided authorisation for emergency supply of two COVID-19 vaccines in December and 
the rollout to individuals in the highest priority groups began in earnest. 

 
2.2. A Brexit trade deal was agreed with only days to spare before the 11pm 31st December 

2020 deadline. Having been agreed with the European Union (EU) on Christmas Eve, the 
Brexit trade deal was voted through the House of Commons by 521 votes to 73 and then 
written into law after passing through the House of Lords and given royal assent. 
 

2.3. The Bank of England (BoE) maintained Bank Rate at 0.1% during the quarter but extended 
its Quantitative Easing programme by £150 billion to £895 billion at its November 2020 
meeting. In its December interest rate announcement, the BoE noted that plans to roll out 
COVID-19 vaccines would reduce some of the downside risks to the economic outlook but 
that recent rises in the number of infections is likely to lead to weaker GDP growth than 
had been predicted in its November Monetary Policy Report. 
 

2.4. Government initiatives continued to support the economy as the furlough (Coronavirus Job 
Retention) scheme was extended once again to April 2021, supporting some 10 million 
jobs, and meaning that by then the government would have provided taxpayer support to 
jobs for over a year. 

 
2.5. GDP growth rebounded by 16.0% (upwardly revised from first estimate of 15.5%) in Q3 

2020 (Jul-Sep) according to the Office for National Statistics (ONS), pulling the annual 
growth rate up to -8.6% from -20.8% in Q2. Construction rose by a huge 41% over the 
quarter, services output was up almost 15% as was production output. However, recent 

Page 93



 

  2 

monthly estimates of GDP have shown growth is slowing and only a 1.1% monthly rise 
was managed in September. 

 
2.6. The headline rate of UK Consumer Price Inflation (CPI) rose to 0.3% year/year in 

November, below expectations (0.6%) and still well below the Bank of England’s 2% target. 
The ONS’ preferred measure of CPIH which includes owner-occupied housing was 0.6% 
year/year (0.8% expected). The weaker-than-expected readings were due to falling prices 
for clothing as Black Friday deals started earlier than usual and for food and non-alcoholic 
drinks. 

 
2.7. In the three months to October, labour market data showed the unemployment rate 

increased from 4.3% to 4.9% while wages rose 2.7% for total pay in nominal terms (2.8% 
for regular pay) and was up 1.9% in real terms (2.1% for regular pay). The employment 
rate fell to 75.2% from 75.8%. Unemployment is expected to increase strongly once the 
various government job support schemes come to an end, with the BoE predicting 
unemployment could peak at almost 8% in the second quarter of 2021. 

 
2.8. The US economy rebounded at an annualised rate of 33.4% in Q3 2020 (Jul-Sep), fuelled 

by more than $3 trillion in pandemic relief. The Federal Reserve maintained the Fed Funds 
rate at between 0% and 0.25%. 

 
2.9. The European Central Bank maintained its base rate at 0% and deposit rate at -0.5% but 

increased the size of its asset purchase scheme to €1.85 trillion and extended it until March 
2022. 

 
Financial Markets 
 

2.10. Equity markets continued to rise, and the Dow Jones beat its pre-crisis peak on the back 
of continued outperformance by a small number of technology stocks. The FTSE indices 
continued to perform well, with the more internationally focused FTSE 100 getting back to 
around 60% of its pre-March level while the more UK-focused FTSE 250 was closer to 
80% of its previous peak over the same period. 
 

2.11. Ultra-low interest rates prevailed through the quarter. Gilt yields remained low but volatile 
over the period with the yield on some short-dated UK government bonds continuing to 
remain negative. The 5-year UK benchmark gilt yield started the October–December 
period at -0.07% and ended at -0.09% (with much volatility in between). The 10-year gilt 
yield fell from 0.23% to 0.19% over the same period but peaked at 0.40% in November 
during a volatile quarter. The 20-year fell from 0.76% to 0.69%. 1-month, 3-month and 12-
month SONIA bid rates averaged -0.01%, 0.06% and 0.07% respectively over the three 
months. 

 
2.12. At the end of December, the yield on 2-year US treasuries was around 0.12% while for 10-

year treasuries the yield was 0.92%. German bund yields remain negative across most 
maturities. 

 
Credit Review 

 
2.13. After rising in late October/early November, credit default swap spreads declined over the 

remaining period of the calendar year to broadly pre-pandemic levels and the gap in 
spreads between UK ringfenced and non-ringfenced entities remained. At the end of the 
period Barclays Bank Plc was trading the highest at 57bps and Standard Chartered the 
lowest at 32bps. The ringfenced banks were trading between 33 and 36bps. 

2.14. During the period Moody’s downgraded the UK sovereign rating to Aa3 with a Stable 
outlook which then impacted a number of other UK institutions, banks and local 

Page 94



 

  3 

government. These included Cornwall Council and Guildford BC which were downgraded 
to Aa3.  Transport for London, Aberdeen CC, Lancashire CC, Lloyds Bank and HSBC 
Bank downgraded to A1 and Warrington BC was downgraded to A2. 
 

2.15. While the approval of two coronavirus vaccines is a credit positive, there remains much 
uncertainty around the extent of the losses banks and building societies will suffer due to 
the economic slowdown which has resulted due to pandemic-related lockdowns and 
restrictions. The institutions on Arlingclose’s counterparty list and recommended duration 
remain under constant review, but at the end of the period no changes had been made to 
the names on the list or the recommended maximum duration of 35 days. 

 
3. Local Context 

 
3.1. On 31st March 2020, the Authority had net borrowing of £531.7m arising from its revenue 

and capital income and expenditure. The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes 
is measured by the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), while usable reserves and 
working capital are the underlying resources available for investment. These factors are 
summarised in Table 1 below. 
 
Table 1: Balance Sheet Summary 

 

Type of Liability 

31.03.20 

Actual  
£m 

General Fund CFR 449.2      

HRA CFR  274.3 

Total CFR ** 723.5 

Less: *Other debt liabilities (28.2) 

Borrowing CFR – comprised of: 695.3 

 - External borrowing 531.7 

 - Internal borrowing 163.6 

* finance leases, PFI liabilities and transferred debt that form part of the Authority’s total debt 
** CFR figures are as at 31.03.20 these are calculated annually in the annual Statement of Accounts 

 

3.2. Lower official interest rates have lowered the cost of short-term, temporary loans and 
investment returns from cash assets that can be used in lieu of borrowing. The Authority 
continued to pursue its long standing strategy of keeping borrowing and investments below 
their underlying levels, sometimes known as internal borrowing, in order to reduce risk. 
 

3.3. The treasury management position on 31st December 2020 and the change over the year 
is shown in Table 2 below. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Table 2: Treasury Management Summary 
 

31.03.20 31.12.20 31.12.20 

Page 95



 

  4 

Type of Borrowing / 
Investment 

Balance 
(£m) 

Movement 
(£m) 

Balance 
(£m) 

Rate (%) 

Long-term borrowing 506.7 (9.3) 497.4 3.26 

Short-term borrowing  25.0 5.0 30.0 0.43 

Total borrowing 531.7 (4.3) 527.4 3.10 

Long-term investments 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 

Short-term investments 15.0 10.0 25.0 0.99 

Cash and cash equivalents 77.3 (67.3) 10.0 0.01 

Total investments 92.3 (57.3) 35.0 0.71 

Net borrowing 439.4   492.4   

 
 
4. Borrowing Update 
 
4.1. In November 2020, the PWLB published its response to the consultation on ‘Future 

Lending Terms’. From 26th November the margin on PWLB loans above gilt yields was 
reduced from 1.8% to 0.8% providing that the borrowing authority can confirm that it is not 
planning to purchase ‘investment assets primarily for yield’ in the current or next two 
financial years.  
 

4.2. Authorities that are purchasing or intending to purchase investment assets primarily for 
yield will not be able to access the PWLB except to refinance existing loans or externalise 
internal borrowing. As part of the borrowing process authorities will now be required to 
submit more detailed capital expenditure plans with confirmation of the purpose of capital 
expenditure from the Section 151 Officer. The PWLB can now also restrict local authorities 
from borrowing in unusual or large amounts. 

 
4.3. Acceptable use of PWLB borrowing includes service delivery, housing, regeneration, 

preventative action, refinancing and treasury management. Misuse of PWLB borrowing 
could result in the PWLB requesting that Authority unwinds problematic transactions, 
suspending access to the PWLB and repayment of loans with penalties. 

 
Municipal Bonds Agency (MBA) 

 
4.4. The MBA revised its standard loan terms and framework agreement. Guarantees for the 

debt of other borrowers are now proportional and limited and a requirement to make 
contribution loans in the event of a default by a borrower has been introduced. The agency 
has issued 5-year floating rate and 40-year fixed rate bonds in 2020, in both instances 
Lancashire County Council is the sole borrower and guarantor.  

 
4.5. If the Authority were to consider future borrowing through the MBA, it would first ensure 

that it had thoroughly scrutinised the legal terms and conditions of the arrangement and 
taken proper advice on these.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Borrowing Strategy during the period 

 
4.6. At 31st December 2020, the Authority held £527.4m of loans, a decrease of £4.3m 

compared to 31st March 2020), as part of its strategy for funding previous and current 

Page 96



 

  5 

years’ capital programmes.  Outstanding loans on 31st December are summarised in Table 
3 below. 
 
Table 3: Borrowing Position 
 

 
31.03.20 
Balance 

£m 

Net 
Movement 

£m 

31.12.20 
Balance 

£m 

31.12.20 
Weighted 
Average 

Rate 
% 

31.12.20 
Weighted 
Average 
Maturity 
(years) 

Public Works Loan Board 381.7 (9.3) 372.4 2.77 27.71 

Banks (LOBO) 125.0 0.0 125.0 4.72 39.43 

Local authorities (short-term) 25.0 5.0 30.0 0.43 0.57 

Total borrowing 531.7 (4.3) 527.4 3.10 28.94 

 
4.7. The Authority’s chief objective when borrowing has been to strike an appropriately low risk 

balance between securing low interest costs and achieving cost certainty over the period 
for which funds are required, with flexibility to renegotiate loans should the Authority’s long-
term plans change being a secondary objective.  

 
4.8. With short-term interest rates remaining much lower than long-term rates and temporary 

investments earning Bank Rate or lower, the Authority considered it to be more cost 
effective in the near term to use internal resources or short-term loans instead.  The net 
movement in temporary / short-term loans is shown in table 3 above.  

 
4.9. The Council has a significant capital programme which extends into the foreseeable future. 

A large proportion of this will be financed by borrowing, which the Council will have to 
undertake in coming years. The Council’s treasury advisor, Arlingclose undertakes a 
weekly ‘cost of carry’ analysis which informs the Council on whether it is financially 
beneficial to undertake borrowing now or delay this for set time periods based on PWLB 
interest rate forecasts. 

 
4.10. Any borrowing which is taken prior to capital expenditure taking place, and reducing the 

extent of the Council’s internal borrowing, would have to be invested in the money markets 
at rates of interest significantly lower than the cost of borrowing, creating an immediate 
cost for revenue budgets. The Authority’s borrowing decisions are not predicated on any 
one outcome for interest rates and a balanced portfolio of short- and long-term borrowing 
is maintained.  

 
LOBO Loans 
 

4.11. The Authority continues to hold £125m of LOBO (Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option) loans 
where the lender has the option to propose an increase in the interest rate at set dates, 
following which the Authority has the option to either accept the new rate or to repay the 
loan at no additional cost.  No banks exercised their option during the quarter. 
 
 
 
 

5. Treasury Investment Activity 
 
5.1. The Authority received central government funding to support small and medium 

businesses during the coronavirus pandemic through grant schemes.  The funds received 

Page 97



 

  6 

were temporarily invested in short-dated, liquid instruments such as call accounts and 
Money Market Funds and disbursed by the end of December.   

 
5.2. The Authority holds invested funds, representing income received in advance of 

expenditure plus balances and reserves held.  During the year, the Authority’s investment 
balances ranged between £35.0 and £166.6 million due to timing differences between 
income and expenditure. The investment position is shown in table 4 below. 

 
Table 4: Treasury Investment Position 
 

Investments 

31.03.20 Net  31.12.20 31.12.20 31.12.20 

Balance Movement Balance 
Rate of 
Return 

Weighted 
Average 
Maturity 

£m £m £m % (Days) 

Banks & building societies 
(unsecured) 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0  

Money Market Funds 0.0 10.0 10.0 0.01 1  

UK Government:           

 - Local Authorities 15.0 10.0 25.0 0.99 67  

 - Debt Management Office 77.3 (77.3) 0.0 0.00 0  

Total investments 92.3 (57.3) 35.0 0.71 49  

 
5.3. Both the CIPFA Code and government guidance require the Authority to invest its funds 

prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its treasury investments before 
seeking the optimum rate of return, or yield.  The Authority’s objective when investing 
money is to strike an appropriate balance between risk and return, minimising the risk of 
incurring losses from defaults and the risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income. 

 
5.4. Continued downward pressure on short-dated cash rate brought net returns on money 

market funds (MMFs) close to zero even after some managers had temporarily lowered 
their fees. At this stage, although close to nil, negative returns are not the central case of 
most MMF managers over the short-term, and fee waivers should maintain slight positive 
net yields, but the possibility of negative rates cannot be ruled out. 

 
5.5. Deposit rates with the Debt Management Office (DMO) have continued to fall and are now 

largely below zero. Funds invested for 3 weeks earn -0.03% rising to -0.01% for a deposit 
4 months or more. The rate was 0% for up to 3-week deposits. 

 
5.6. The return on Money Market Funds net of fees, which had fallen after Bank Rate was cut 

to 0.1% in March, are now at or very close to zero.  In many instances, the fund 
management companies have temporarily lowered or waived fees to maintain a positive 
net return.  

 
5.7. The progression of risk and return metrics are shown in the extracts from Arlingclose’s 

quarterly investment benchmarking in Table 5 below. 
 
 

Table 5: Investment Benchmarking – Treasury investments managed in-house 
 

Page 98



 

  7 

  
Credit 
Score 

Credit 
Rating 

Bail-in 
Exposure 

Weighted 
Average 
Maturity 
(Days) 

Rate of 
Return 

31.03.2020 3.40 AA 0% 56 0.23% 

31.12.2020 4.47 AA- 29% 49 0.71% 

Similar Local Authorities 4.89 A+ 66% 41 0.15% 

All Local Authorities 4.56 A+ 63% 17 0.00% 

Scoring:  
AAA = highest credit quality = 1; D = lowest credit quality = 26 
Aim = A- or higher credit rating, with a score of 7 or lower, to reflect current investment approach with main focus on 
security 

 
 

Non-Treasury Investments 
 

5.8. The definition of investments in CIPFA’s revised Treasury Management Code now covers 
all the financial assets of the Authority as well as other non-financial assets which the 
Authority holds primarily for financial return. This is replicated in the Investment Guidance 
issued by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) and 
Welsh Government, in which the definition of investments is further broadened to also 
include all such assets held partially for financial return.  

 
Treasury Performance  

 
5.9. Treasury Investments generated an average rate of return of 0.73% in the first two quarters 

of the year. The Council’s treasury investment income for the year is forecast in line with 
budget of £136.5k.   

 
 

5.10. Borrowing costs for 2020/21 are forecast in line with budget at Q2, at £20.4m (£16.4m 
HRA, £4.0m General Fund).  In prior years, these budgets have underspent due to a 
number of factors, including: the current lower interest rate environment reducing interest 
costs for the Council, and delays in the capital programme’s delivery.  Should slippage in 
the Council’s capital programme occur, it will reduce the borrowing requirement, and 
reduce this forecast. 

 
Estimates for income 2020/21  

 
5.11. The corporate world is still adjusting to the economic shock, with probably more to come, 

and it is still too early to tell which companies will withstand the economic damage in the 
short- to medium-term or which will choose to conserve cash in very difficult economic 
conditions simply to survive.  

 
5.12. Investment income in the Authority’s 2020/21 budget was set against a very different 

economic backdrop. Bank Rate, which was 0.75% until February 2020, now stands at 
0.1%. In light of these changes, interest earned from short-dated money market 
investments will be significantly lower.  

 
 
 

 
 
6. Compliance 
 

Page 99



 

  8 

6.1. The Director of Finance reports that all treasury management activities undertaken during 
the quarter complied fully with the CIPFA Code of Practice and the Authority’s approved 
Treasury Management Strategy.  

 
6.2. Compliance with the authorised limit and operational boundary for external debt is 

demonstrated in table 6 below. 
 

Table 6: Debt Limits 
 

 
Q3 

Maximum 

31.12.2020 

Actual 

2020/21 
Operational 
Boundary 

2020/21 
Authorised 

Limit 

Complied? 

Yes/No 

Borrowing 531.7 527.4 929.6 979.6 Yes 

PFI and Finance 
Leases 

28.2 28.2 28.1 30.9 Yes 

Total debt 559.9 555.6 957.7 1,010.5 Yes 

 
 

6.3. Since the operational boundary is a management tool for in-year monitoring it is not 
significant if the operational boundary is breached on occasions due to variations in cash 
flow, and this is not counted as a compliance failure, however, Haringey’s debt remained 
well below this limit at all points in the first half of the year. 
 
Treasury Management Indicators 

 
6.4. The Authority measures and manages its exposures to treasury management risks using 

the following indicators. 
 
Security 

 
6.5. The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk by monitoring 

the value-weighted average credit score of its investment portfolio.  This is calculated by 
applying a score to each investment (AAA=1, AA+=2, etc.) and taking the arithmetic 
average, weighted by the size of each investment. Unrated investments are assigned a 
score based on their perceived risk. 

 

 
31.12.20 
Actual 

2020/21 
Target 

Complied? 

Portfolio average credit score 4.47 (AA-) 7.0 (A-) Yes 

 

 

Liquidity 
 

6.6. The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to liquidity risk by 
monitoring the amount of cash available to meet unexpected payments within a rolling 
three-month period, without additional borrowing. 
 

 
31.12.20 
Actual 

2020/21 
Target 

Complied? 

Total cash available within 3 months 23.3 10.0 Yes 

 
Interest Rate Exposures 
 

Page 100



 

  9 

6.7. This indicator is set to control the Authority’s exposure to interest rate risk.  The upper 
limits on the one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise or fall in interests was: 
 

Interest rate risk indicator 
31.12.20 
Actual 

2020/21 
Limit 

Complied? 

Upper limit on one-year revenue 
impact of a 1% rise in interest rates 

0.3 £1m Yes 

Upper limit on one-year revenue 
impact of a 1% fall in interest rates 

-0.3 £1m Yes 

The impact of a change in interest rates is calculated on the assumption that maturing loans and investment will be replaced 
at current rates. 

 
Maturity Structure of Borrowing 
 

6.8. This indicator is set to control the Authority’s exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and 
lower limits on the maturity structure of all borrowing were: 

 

 
31.12.20 
Actual 

Upper 
Limit 

Lower 
Limit 

Complied? 

Under 12 months 8.44% 50% 0% Yes 

12 months and within 24 months 1.41% 40% 0% Yes 

24 months and within 5 years 6.14% 40% 0% Yes 

5 years and within 10 years 4.27% 40% 0% Yes 

10 years and within 20 years 15.95% 40% 0% Yes 

20 years and within 30 years 9.48% 40% 0% Yes 

30 years and with 40 years 24.93% 50% 0% Yes 

40 years and within 50 years 29.39% 50% 0% Yes 

50 years and above 0% 40% 0% Yes 

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year.  The maturity date of borrowing is the earliest date on which the 
lender can demand repayment. 

 
Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than a year 
 

6.9. The purpose of this indicator is to control the Authority’s exposure to the risk of incurring 
losses by seeking early repayment of its investments.  The limits on the long-term principal 
sum invested to final maturities beyond the period end were: 

 

 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

Actual principal invested beyond year end Nil Nil Nil 

Limit on principal invested beyond year end £10m £10m £10m 

Complied? Yes Yes Yes 

 
 

 
 
 

7. Outlook for the remainder of 2020/21  
 

Page 101



 

  10 

7.1. The medium-term global economic outlook has improved with the distribution of vaccines, 
but the recent upsurge in coronavirus cases has worsened economic prospects over the 
short term. 
 

7.2. Restrictive measures and further lockdowns are likely to continue in the UK and Europe 
until most of the population is vaccinated by the second half of 2021. The recovery period 
will be strong thereafter, but potentially longer than previously envisaged. 
 

7.3. Signs of a slowing UK economic recovery were already evident in UK monthly GDP and 
PMI data, even before the second lockdown and Tier 4 restrictions. Employment is falling 
despite an extension to support packages. The need to support economic recoveries and 
use up spare capacity will result in central banks maintaining low interest rates for the 
medium term.  
 

7.4. The combined effect of Brexit and the after-effects of the pandemic will dampen growth 
relative to peers, maintain spare capacity and limit domestically generated inflation. The 
Bank of England will therefore maintain loose monetary conditions for the foreseeable 
future. 
 

7.5. Longer-term yields will also remain depressed, anchored by low central bank policy rates, 
expectations for potentially even lower rates and insipid longer-term inflation expectations. 
There is a chance yields may follow a slightly different path in the medium term, depending 
on investor perceptions of growth and inflation, the deployment of vaccines or if the UK 
leaves the EU without a deal. 

 
7.6. Arlingclose expects Bank Rate to remain at the current 0.10% level. The central case for 

Bank Rate is no change, but further cuts to zero, or perhaps even into negative territory, 
cannot be completely ruled out. 

 
7.7. Gilt yields will remain low in the medium term. Shorter term gilt yields are currently negative 

and will remain around zero or below until either the Bank expressly rules out negative 
Bank Rate or growth/inflation prospects improve. 
 

7.8. Downside risks remain, and indeed appear heightened, in the near term, as the 
government reacts to the escalation in infection rates and the Brexit transition period 
comes to an end. 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22 Jun-22 Sep-22 Dec-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24

Official Bank Rate

Upside risk 0.00 0.00 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30

Arlingclose Central Case 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

Downside risk 0.30 0.40 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50

Page 102



 

Page 1 of 3  

Report for:  Corporate Committee – 17 March 2021 
 
Title: Annual Internal Audit Plan, Strategy and Charter 2021/22 
 
Report  
authorised by :  Assistant Director of Corporate Governance 
 
Lead Officer: Minesh Jani, Head of Audit and Risk Management  
   Tel:       020 8489 5973 

Email: minesh.jani@haringey.gov.uk    
 
Ward(s) affected: N/A 
 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: Non-key decision 
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 
1.1 The Corporate Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving the 

annual internal audit plan as part of its Terms of Reference. 
 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 
2.1 Not applicable.  

 
3. Recommendations  
 
3.1   That the Corporate Committee reviews and approves the updated Annual 

Internal Audit Strategy and Plan for 2021/22 (Appendix A) and the Internal Audit 
Charter (Appendix B). 

 
4. Reasons for decision  
4.1 Local authorities are required by law to maintain an internal audit function. In 

addition, The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 reinforce the statutory 
requirement and re-state the need for the Council to maintain an adequate and 
effective system of internal audit. 

 
4.2 The annual internal audit plan is a key element in delivering the Council’s 

statutory requirements. The Corporate Committee is responsible for ensuring 
that this is in place and approving the Council’s Annual Internal Audit Plan.  

 
5. Alternative options considered 
5.1 Not applicable.  
 
6. Background information 
6.1 The methodology for developing the Internal Audit Plan focuses upon the 

quantification of the risks associated with achieving corporate and directorate 
objectives. At Haringey, the Internal Audit service is delivered by Mazars, who 
undertake the majority of the internal audit work in accordance with the contract 
in place, including IT and procurement audit.   For 2021/22, the Deputy Head of 
Audit and Risk Management created following a restructure will continue to 
support the Head of the Service in ensuring key risks are captured at the 

Page 103 Agenda Item 10

mailto:minesh.jani@haringey.gov.uk


 

Page 2 of 3  

planning stage of the audit.  The Head and Deputy of the team will manage the 
delivery of the audit plan and complete some audits themselves. 

6.2 The in-house corporate anti-fraud team is responsible for investigations into 
allegations of financial irregularity, pro-active and reactive corporate anti-fraud 
work, provision of advice on risk and controls and some grant certification work. 

6.3 Appendix A contains the proposed annual audit plan for 2021/22, which is risk 
based and has been derived following consideration of: the Borough Plan and 
related Priorities; organisational changes; risk registers; corporate programmes 
and projects; the Annual Audit and Inspection Letter; changes to legislation; and 
fraud investigation work completed in 2020/21.  

6.5 Appendix A also includes the audit strategy, and Appendix B the Charter which 
was used to deliver the Council’s internal audit plan.  The strategy and charter 
comply with the statutory 2017 UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS), which provide a consistent framework for internal audit services 
across the UK public sector.   

7. Contribution to strategic outcomes 
7.1 Internal audit is an important element of the Council’s assurance processes. 

The internal audit and counter-fraud teams make a significant contribution to 
ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control throughout the 
Council, which covers all Priority areas. The annual audit plan is a key element 
in ensuring the Council complies with its statutory responsibilities. 

 
8. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including 

procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities) 
 

8.1 Finance and Procurement 
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work 
which will be completed by Mazars to undertake the annual audit plan in 
2021/22 is part of the contract, which was re-let following Cabinet approval in 
January 2018 in accordance with EU regulations. The costs of this contract are 
contained and managed within the Audit and Risk Management revenue 
budgets, which are monitored on a monthly basis. 
 
The presentation of the attached draft annual internal audit plan for approval by 
this Committee meets the Council’s statutory requirement under the 2015 
Accounts and Audit Regulations. 

 
8.2 Legal 

 Head of Legal & Governance (interim) has been consulted in the preparation of 
this report, and in noting that the plan and strategy follow best practice and 
industry standards respectively, confirms that there are no direct implications 
arising out of the report.  

 
8.3 Equality 

The Council has a public sector equality duty under the Equality Act (2010) to 
have due regard to: 

 tackle discrimination and victimisation of persons that share the 
characteristics protected under S4 of the Act. These include the 

Page 104



 

Page 3 of 3  

characteristics of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex (formerly 
gender) and sexual orientation; 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share those 
protected characteristics and people who do not; 

 foster good relations between people who share those characteristics and 
people who do not. 

 
As contracted providers of Haringey Council, the internal audit contractor is 
required to demonstrate a strong commitment to equality and fairness in their 
actions and work practices, and adherence to the Equality Act 2010. Ensuring 
that the Council has effective internal audit and assurance arrangements in 
place will also assist the Council to use its available resources more effectively. 

9. Use of Appendices 
Appendix A – Annual Internal Audit Plan and Strategy 2021/22; and 
Appendix B – Internal Audit Charter. 
 

10. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
Not applicable. 

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Haringey’s internal audit function is driven by an appropriate strategy, rather than as a tactical 
response to operational

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                      

 

     

Page 107



 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 108



 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

Page 109



 

 

Page 110



 

 

Audit Area Client 
 

Days 

Corporate/Cross Cutting Risk Audits 

Business Continuity Planning   10 

Arrangements for Strategic and 
directorate Planning 

Director of Customers, Trans & 
Resources 

 10 

Performance Management 
arrangements (corporate and 
directorate) 

Director of Customers, Trans & 
Resources 

 15 

Digital Together Programme  Director of Customers, Trans & 
Resources 

 15 

Hospitality and Gifts Director of Customers, Trans & 
Resources 

 7 

Recruitment – interim staff including 
controls over IR35  

Director of Customers, Trans & 
Resources 

 15 

    

Sub-total – Corporate Risk Audits    72 

    

Borough Plan – Priority Risk Audits    

Priority 2 People – a Haringey where strong families, strong networks and strong 

communities nurture all residents to live well and achieve their potential 

Arrangements for planning, monitoring 
and controlling the use of residential 
placements. 

Director of Children’s Services  10 

Management and control over record 
keeping for Looked after Children. 

Director of Children’s Services  10 

Page 111



 

 

Audit Area Client 
 

Days 

Arrangements for the management 
and control over child protection cases 

Director of Children’s Services  10 

Council’s arrangements for dealing 
allegations against professionals. 

Director of Children’s Services  10 

Arrangements to satisfy the legal 
requirement to review EHCPs 
annually. 

Director of Children’s Services  15 

    

Sub-total Priority 2.1   55 

    

Priority 2 People – a Haringey where strong families, strong networks and strong 

communities nurture all residents to live well and achieve their potential 

Arrangements for imbedding actions 
from Task and Finish Group (Mosaic) 

Director of Adult and Health  12 

Review of Joint Management 
Arrangements 

Director of Adult and Health  10 

Mental Health Assessment Director of Adult and Health  10 

Transition to London Living Wage Director of Adult and Health  10 

Deprivation of Liberty Director of Adult and Health  10 

Direct Payments Director of Adult and Health  10 

    

Sub-total Priority 2.2   62 

 
 

   

Priority 3 Place – A place with strong, resilient and connected communities where 

people can lead active and healthy lives in an environment that is safe, clean and 

green. 

Post implementation of new parking 
system 

Director of Environment & 
Neighbourhoods 

 15 

Control and Monitoring of Purchasing 
Cycle (Strategic) 

Director of Environment & 
Neighbourhoods  

 15 

Use and Control of CCTV Director of Environment & 
Neighbourhoods  

 10 

Management of inspection of Trees Director of Environment & 
Neighbourhoods  

 10 

New River Leisure Centre Director of Environment & 
Neighbourhoods 

 10 

Performance Indicators - Veolia Director of Environment & 
Neighbourhoods  

 10 

    

Sub-total Priority 3   70 

 
 

   

Page 112



 

 

Audit Area Client 
 

Days 

Priority 4 Economy – A growing economy which provides opportunities for all our 

residents and supports our businesses to thrive. 

Acquisitions and Disposal of Assets Director of Housing, 
Regeneration & Planning 

 15 

Delivery of Capital project /Schemes Director of Housing, 
Regeneration & Planning 

 15 

Application Review - Tech Forge Director of Housing, 
Regeneration & Planning 

 12 

Building Compliance Director of Housing, 
Regeneration & Planning 

 10 

Housing Development Programme Director of Housing, 
Regeneration & Planning 

 15 

 Sub-total Priority 4   67 

    

Priority 5 Your Council – The way the Council works 

Advice and assistance in the 
arrangements to administer the Local 
Welfare Assistance Scheme. 

Director of Customers, Trans & 
Resources 

 12

Advice and assistance to implement 
the Council’s Debt Strategy.

Director of Customers, Trans & 
Resources 

 12

 
 

Sub-total Priority 5   24 

 
 
 

   

Corporate IT Audits    

IT capability  Chief Information Officer  

Cyber Security   Chief Information Officer  

Disaster Recovery Chief Information Officer  

IT Procurement controls  Chief Information Officer  

    

Corporate IT Audits    48 

 
 
 

   

Contract and Procurement Audit 

Contract Management Director of Environment & 
Neighbourhoods 

 10 

Management and Control of Contract 
Register 

Director of Environment & 
Neighbourhoods 

 10 

    

Sub-total – Contract Audits    20 

Page 113



 

 

Audit Area Client 
 

Days 

Risk Based Audits of Key Financial Systems 

Accounting & General Ledger Director of Customers, Trans & 
Resources 

 10 

Accounts Receivable (Sundry Debtors) Director of Customers, Trans & 
Resources 

 13 

Accounts Payable (Creditors)  Director of Customers, Trans & 
Resources 

 13 

Housing Benefits  Director of Customers, Trans & 
Resources 

 15 

Council Tax  Director of Customers, Trans & 
Resources 

 12 

NNDR Director of Customers, Trans & 
Resources 

 8 

Payroll  Director of Customers, Trans & 
Resources 

 12 

Administration and controls over 
Grants administered on behalf of 
central government 

Director of Customers, Trans & 
Resources and Director of 
Finance 

 10 

    

Sub-total – Key Financial Systems    93 

    

School Audits Risk Based Programme 

    

Hornsey School for Girls Head Teacher  6 

Fortismere Head Teacher  6 

Alexandra Head Teacher  5 

Chestnuts Head Teacher  5 

Coldfall Head Teacher  5 

Earlham Head Teacher  5 

Mulberry  Head Teacher  5 

Rhodes Avenue Head Teacher  5 

Risley Avenue Head Teacher  5 

St James Head Teacher  5 

St Martin of Porres Catholic Head Teacher  5 

St Mary's CE Primary Head Teacher  5 

St Paul's Catholic Head Teacher  5 

Tiverton Head Teacher  5 

Rowland Hill Head Teacher  5 

TBC Head Teacher  5 

TBC Head Teacher  5 

Management and follow-up of 2020/21 
Schools' Audit Recs 

Head Teacher  15 

    

Sub-total – School Audits    102 

 
 

   

Page 114



 

 

Audit Area Client 
 

Days 

Follow up of Audit Recommendations     30 

Admin and Management     70 

Risk Management      70 

Contingency     21 

Total   804 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 

OFFICIAL   

   1 
 

 

 
 

  

 

 

 

Page 117



Appendix B 

OFFICIAL   

   2 
 

 

Policy History 

Version Summary of 
Change 

Contact Implementation 
Date 

Review 
Date 

EqIA 
Date 

1.2 Inclusion of IPPF 
mission and core 
principles 

Head of Audit 
& Risk 
Management 

December 2017 January 
2019 

March 
2015 

1.3 Update for new 
designation of the 
Corporate Board, 
added paras 6.7 
and 6.8 and 
added formal sign 
off. 

Head of Audit 
& Risk 
Management 

December 2017 January 
2019 

March 
2015 

1.4 Updated para 9.3 
for Deputy to also 
hold IIA / CCAB 
qualification. 

Head of Audit 
& Risk 
Management 

March 2021 March 
2021 

March 
2015 

 

Links and Dependencies  

Employee Code of Conduct 
Disciplinary Procedures 
Council Constitution 
Whistleblowing Policy 
Anti-money Laundering Policy 
Anti-bribery Policy 

 

Related Forms  

Declaration of Interests Form 

Declaration of Receipt of Gift or Hospitality 

  

Page 118



Appendix B 

OFFICIAL   

   3 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 119



Appendix B 

OFFICIAL   

   4 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 120



Appendix B 

OFFICIAL   

   5 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 121



Appendix B 

OFFICIAL   

   6 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 122



Appendix B 

OFFICIAL   

   7 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Internal Audit Activity charter  
 
 
Approved on 3 March 2021.  
 
 
Minesh Jani 
_________________________________  
Head of Audit and Risk Management (Chief Audit Executive) 
 
 
 
_________________________________  

Page 123



Appendix B 

OFFICIAL   

   8 
 

 Chief Executive (Chief Executive Officer)
 
 
 
_____________________________  

 Chair of Corporate Board (Audit Committee)  

 

Page 124



 

Page 1 of 5  

Report for:  Corporate Committee – 17th March 2021 
 
Title: Audit & Risk Service Update 
 
Report  
authorised by:  Director of Finance 
 
Lead Officer: Minesh Jani, Head of Audit and Risk Management  
   Tel:       020 8489 5973 

Email: minesh.jani@haringey.gov.uk   
 
Ward(s) affected: N/A 
 
Report for Key/  
Non-Key Decision: Information 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 
1.1 This report details the work reported by the in-house Audit resources, as well as 

our outsourced partner Mazars, since the end of quarter 3, which was reported 
in February.  Information regarding the National Fraud Initiative which has 
recently commenced is also included. 

 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 
2.1 Not applicable.  

 
3. Recommendations  
3.1 The Corporate Committee is recommended to note the activities of the team. 

 
4. Reasons for decision  
4.1 The Corporate Committee is responsible for monitoring the effectiveness of the 

Council’s Internal Audit Strategy; policies on Anti-Fraud and Corruption and 
receiving assurance with regard the Council’s internal control environment and 
mechanisms for managing risk.   In order to facilitate this, progress reports are 
provided on a quarterly basis for review and consideration by the Corporate 
Committee.  

 
5. Alternative options considered 
5.1 Not applicable.  
 
6. Background information 
6.1 The information in this report has been compiled from information held by Audit 

& Risk Management. 
 

7. Contribution to strategic outcomes 
 

7.1 The Audit & Risk team makes a significant contribution through its pro-active 
work in ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control throughout 
the Council, which covers all key Priority areas.  

 
8. Statutory Officers comments - Chief Finance Officer and Deputy 

Monitoring Officer 
 

Page 125 Agenda Item 11

mailto:minesh.jani@haringey.gov.uk


 

Page 2 of 5  

8.1 Finance and Procurement 
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work 
completed by the Team is funded from within the Audit and Risk Management 
revenue budget.  The maintenance of a strong proactive and reactive fraud 
investigation team is a key element of the Council’s system of Governance. 

 
8.2 Legal 

The Council’s Head of Legal and Governance (interim) has been consulted in 
the preparation of this report and has no comments. 

 
8.3 Equality 

The Council has a public sector equality duty under the Equality Act (2010) to 
have due regard to: 

 tackle discrimination and victimisation of persons that share the 
characteristics protected under S4 of the Act. These include the 
characteristics of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex (formerly 
gender) and sexual orientation. 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share those 
protected characteristics and people who do not. 

 foster good relations between people who share those characteristics and 
people who do not. 

The Audit & Risk team is required to demonstrate a strong commitment to 
equality and fairness in their actions and work practices, and adherence to the 
Equality Act 2010 and this is built into the team’s operational procedures. 
Ensuring that the Council has effective counter-fraud arrangements in place will 
assist the Council to use its available resources more effectively.  

9. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
Not applicable. 
 

10. Performance Management Information 
10.1 Local performance targets have been agreed for Audit and Risk Management, 

these are reported quarterly so none are included within this report. 

Page 126



 

Page 3 of 5  

 
11. INTRODUCTION 
 
11.1 This report is an interim report so covers the work reported since the quarter 

three report was presented to committee.   It also contains some information on 
the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) as requested in the February meeting of the 
committee. 

 
12. INTERNAL AUDIT  
 
12.1 Due to our inability to undertake risk-based system audits at the start of the 

financial year there is a greater number of audits in progress than would usually 
be scheduled for quarter four.  Management and the team are working together 
to ensure efficient delivery of the remaining audits which will inform the council’s 
Head of Internal Audit Opinion for 2020/21.    

  
12.2 Appendix 1 provides an interim update from Mazars and informs that since our 

last report in February 2021, two further risk-based system audit reports have 
been finalised and a further two schools have also received final reports.  Six 
system audit reports and one school report are in draft, these reports will be 
finalised once management responses have been received. These will be 
included in this report and will be reported at the Corporate Committee’s 
meeting in July 2021.   A number of other audits are at various stages of 
completion and all remaining audits are scheduled to commence before the end 
of the financial year. All finalised audits received an adequate level of 
assurance.  

 
12.3 In addition to the planned audit work, internal audit reviewed the opportunity to 

acquire Alexandra House, the findings of this audit are set out below. 
 
12.4 Opportunity to Acquire Alexandra House  
 Mazars were commissioned to investigate and report to the Head of Audit and 

Risk on the process by which a decision was taken not to purchase Alexandra 
House, Wood Green, London N22 7TY.  The purpose of this investigation was 
to examine the governance arrangements in place for considering the 
opportunity to purchase Alexandra House and whether Council policies and 
procedures were followed.  As part of this investigation, internal audit examined 
reports and documents presented at the Corporate Property Board and the 
Strategic Property Board, minutes of actions and decisions and used the 
information obtained by the Assistant Director – Capital Projects and Property 
(Interim). The investigation did not consider or give a view on whether 
Alexandra House should have been acquired or comment on its fair value. In 
May 2019, the owners of Alexandra House were informed the Council was not 
interested in purchasing Alexandra House. It was noted neither the Chief 
Executive nor the Leader were made aware of this decision through any of the 
Council’s Boards. 

 
12.5 From the review, it was noted the options considered to acquire Alexandra 

House were, the acquisition would help deliver MTFS savings and, the 
acquisition may support the accommodation strategy.  In considering these 
options, officers appear to be of the view the Council would continue to lease 
Alexandra House from the new owner if it did not acquire the building. 

Page 127



 

Page 4 of 5  

 
12.6 The audit concluded the governance arrangement to manage the acquisition of 

a significant property asset such as Alexandra House was weak.  This led to an 
ad hoc and largely informal process being adopted and a failure to raise the 
matter at appropriate fora and with appropriate officers and members at the 
right time and in the correct way. It was noted there was also a lack of 
documented evidence as to who was involved and what decisions were taken. 
No evidence was available that all options had been considered and presented 
within an established framework with a fully thought out business case.  

 
12.7 The investigation highlighted the following issues: - 
 

• Lack of documented governance framework leading to decisions being 
taken at an inappropriate level and a failure to consider all possible options 
as part of comprehensive business case to consider the opportunity 
presented by acquiring Alexandra House; 

• No obvious forum for consideration of such matters in terms of reference; 
• Lack of formal reporting of options leading to formal decisions on progress; 
• Lack of clear delegation to determine who was the decision owner; and  
• Failure to formally record decisions and discussions. 

 
12.8 Officers highlighted improvements for dealing with property acquisition, 

including: 
• Acquisitions and disposals policy agreed by Cabinet as part of the Asset 

Management Plan February 2020 with an update scheduled for February 
2021 including transparency about principles and tests applied to any 
acquisition proposal. 

• Review of Governance has taken place with principles of a corporate 
property approach agreed at Statutory Functions Board. 

• Changes to the senior reporting arrangements which cover acquisitions 
(Capital Board) to be considered by Corporate Board 28/1/2021. 

• Improved formalised communications with Cabinet Lead Member and 
Leader about property matters through Property 1-1 and Strategic Property 
Board, including possible acquisitions including those which are not 
recommended, with appropriate officer clearance in place and minuted. 

• Development tracker held in SPU as a central register of all possible or 
agreed acquisitions in one place; and 

• Officer procedures for acquisitions and disposals proposals have been 
reviewed and improved. 

 
12.9 Internal Audit will review the arrangements as part of its internal audit plan for 

2021/22. 
 
13. National Fraud Initiative 
 
13.1 The National Fraud Initiative is run by the Cabinet Office and compares data 

sets for the purpose of identifying fraud.  The data is either provided directly by 
the Council, from our own systems, or by other bodies for example (Department 
of Work and Pensions).  The NFI runs every two years, however some data 
sets have to be provided annually. 

 

Page 128



 

Page 5 of 5  

13.2 Examples of data sets for 2020/21 match include: 

 pensions 

 payroll 

 trade creditors’ payment history and trade creditors’ standing data 

 housing (current tenants) and right to buy 

 housing waiting lists 

 housing benefits (provided by the DWP) 

 council tax reduction scheme 

 council tax (required annually) 

 electoral register (required annually) 

 students eligible for a loan (provided by the SLC) 

 private supported care home residents 

 transport passes and permits (including residents’ parking, blue badges 
and concessionary travel) 

 personal budget (direct payments). 
 
13.3 For 2020/21 new matches relating to business grants have been included as 

mandatory however these are running on a separate timetable to the main 
matches, which has recently been received for review and investigation. 

 
13.4 The Council has received over 14,000 matches as a result of the main matching 

process and the Audit and Risk team are working with services to develop a 
risk-based approach to the NFI exercise.   Updates on progress as well as 
outcomes will be provided to Senior Management and Members during 2021. 

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

APPENDIX 1 

Introduction 

This report to the Corporate Committee for the 2020/21 financial year includes details of all reports which have reached final stage since the 

February 2021 Committee. The report provides information on assurance opinions on areas we have reviewed and gives an indication of the 

direction of travel for key systems work which will provide Members with information on how risks are being managed over time. Full copies of 

our audit reports will be provided upon request. The fieldwork for these reviews has been completed during the government measures put in 

place in response to Covid-19. Consequently, testing has been performed remotely. 

All recommendations are agreed with Council officers, and any disputes are discussed prior to the final report being issued. All recommendations to address 

any control weaknesses highlighted within this report have been agreed. Officers’ actions to address the recommendations, including the responsible officer 

and the deadline for completion, are fully detailed in the individual final audit reports. The attached tables reflect the status of the systems at the time of the 

audit, and recommendations may already have been implemented by Council officers by the time the final report is issued and reported to the Corporate 

Committee.  

P
age 131



 

  2 

Key Highlights/Summary since the February 2021 Committee: 
2020/21 Internal Audit Reports finalised: 

• Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

• Buyback of Right to Buy (RtB) 

2020/21 Schools Audit Reports finalised: 

• Welbourne Primary School 

• Riverside Primary School 

2020/21 Draft Internal Audit Reports issued

• Contract Management 

• Purchase Cards 

• Arrangements for Letting Contracts 

• Capital Schemes 

• London Construction Programme 

• No Recourse to Public Funds 

• North Harringay Primary School 

2020/21 Audits at Fieldwork Stage

• Brokerage (Adult’s and Children’s) 

• IT Disaster Recovery 

• Adaptations (Adult’s and Children’s) 

• Verification Framework 

• Administration of Concessionary 

Travel 

• Insourcing  

• IT Infrastructure Resilience  

• Contract Waivers 

• Campsbourne Primary School 

• Tetherdown Primary School 

• Pest Control – Fees and Charges 

• Accounting for Pay and Display 

Income 

• Accounts Payable  

• Health and Safety 

• Lea Valley School 

• Woodlands Park Nursery School 

• Adult Social Care Management 

(Quality of Practice) 

• Lancasterian Primary School 

• Management and Control of Carers 

Service 

• Bruce Grove Primary School 

• West Green Primary School 

• Revenue Assurance 

P
age 132



 

  

Audit Progress and Detailed Summaries 

The following table sets out the audits finalised since the February 2021 Committee and the status of the systems at the time of the audit. It 
must be noted that the recommendations may already have been implemented by Council officers by the time the final report is issued and 
reported to the Corporate Committee.  

Audit Title Date of Audit 
Date of Final 

Report 

Assurance 

Level 

Direction of 

Travel 

Number of 

Recommendations   

(Priority) 

1 2 3 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) November 2020 February 2021 Adequate N/A - 1 2 

Buyback of Right to Buy (RtB) November 2020 January 2021 Adequate N/A - 2 2 

As part of the 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan we have visited the following schools and issued a final report: 

 

School 

 

Date of Audit Date of Final 

Report 

 

Assurance 

Level 

 

Direction of 

Travel 

Number of 

Recommendations   

(Priority) 

1 2 3 

Welbourne Primary School January 2021 February 2021 Adequate  - 4 2 

Riverside Primary School January 2021 February 2021 Adequate  - 3 1 

Definitions of assurance levels, recommendations priorities and direction of travel are included below.

P
age 133



 

  

As a reminder, our recommendations are prioritised according to the following categories: 

 

Direction  

Direction Description 

 Improved since the last audit visit.   

 Deteriorated since the last audit visit.   

 Unchanged since the last audit report.   

No arrow Not previously visited by Internal Audit. 

Definitions of Recommendations 

Priority Description 

Priority 1 

(Fundamental) 

Recommendations represent fundamental control 

weaknesses, which expose the organisation to a 

high degree of unnecessary risk. 

Priority 2  

(Significant) 

Recommendations represent significant control 

weaknesses which expose the organisation to a 

moderate degree of unnecessary risk. 

Priority 3 

(Housekeeping) 

Recommendations show areas where we have 

highlighted opportunities to implement a good or 

better practice, to improve efficiency or further 

reduce exposure to risk. 

Definitions of Assurance Levels 

Level Description 

Substantial 

Assurance: 

Our audit finds no significant weaknesses and we feel that 

overall risks are being effectively managed.  The issues raised 

tend to be minor issues or areas for improvement within an 

adequate control framework. 

Adequate 

Assurance: 

There is generally a sound control framework in place, but there 

are significant issues of compliance or efficiency or some 

specific gaps in the control framework which need to be 

addressed.  Adequate assurance indicates that despite this, 

there is no indication that risks are crystallising at present. 

Limited 

Assurance: 

Weaknesses in the system and/or application of controls are 

such that the system objectives are put at risk.  Significant 

improvements are required to the control environment. 

Nil 

Assurance: 

There is no framework of key controls in place to manage risks. 

This substantially increases the likelihood that the service will 

not achieve its objectives. Where key controls do exist, they are 

not applied. 

P
age 134



 

  

Statement of Responsibility 
We take responsibility to the London Borough of Haringey for this report which is prepared on the basis of the limitations set out below. 

The responsibility for designing and maintaining a sound system of internal control and the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities rests with management, with 

internal audit providing a service to management to enable them to achieve this objective. Specifically, we assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal control 

arrangements implemented by management and perform sample testing on those controls in the period under review with a view to providing an opinion on the extent to which 

risks in this area are managed. 

We plan our work in order to ensure that we have a reasonable expectation of detecting significant control weaknesses. However, our procedures alone should not be relied 

upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses in internal controls, nor relied upon to identify any circumstances of fraud or irregularity. Even sound systems of internal control 

can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not be proof against collusive fraud. The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention 

during the course of our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Recommendations 

for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact before they are implemented. The performance of our work is not and should not be taken as a substitute for 

management’s responsibilities for the application of sound management practices. 

This report is confidential and must not be disclosed to any third party or reproduced in whole or in part without our prior written consent. To the fullest extent permitted by law 

Mazars LLP accepts no responsibility and disclaims all liability to any third party who purports to use or reply for any reason whatsoever on the Report, its contents, conclusions, 

any extract, reinterpretation amendment and/or modification by any third party is entirely at their own risk. 

In this document references to Mazars are references to Mazars LL Registered office: Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London E1W 1DD, United Kingdom. Registered 

in England and Wales No 4585162. 

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group. Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales 

to carry out company audit work. 

 

 

P
age 135



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes
	Corporate Committee Action Tracker - March 21 v2

	7 Renaming of Black Boy Lane to La Rose Lane
	9 Quarter 4 Treasury Management Update
	Appendix 1 - Q3 2020-21 Treasury Managment Update

	10 Annual Internal Audit Plan, Strategy and Charter 2021/22
	Appendix A final - Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2020-21 120620
	Appendix B final - Internal Audit Charter 2021

	11 Audit & Risk Service Update
	Appendix Mazars - LBH Progress March 2021 - final issued 02.03.2021


